

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II  
Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink  
Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink  
Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

This amendment and restatement approved by the School Committee: \_\_\_\_\_, 2022 supersedes the original 1954 agreement and all other amendments to the original agreement.

### REGIONAL AGREEMENT

~~The following agreement has been approved by representatives of the six Island towns and by the State Department of Education.~~

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 71 of the General Laws of Massachusetts (“M.G.L.”), as amended, among the towns of Tisbury, Oak Bluffs, Edgartown, West Tisbury, Chilmark, ~~Gay Head~~Aquinnah (formerly known as Gay Head), in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, hereinafter sometimes referred to as “member towns” for the purpose of establishing a regional school district and setting forth the terms and conditions for its operation. The regional school district shall be called the Martha’s Vineyard Regional School District (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “District”). This restatement is made pursuant to Section XIII of the original regional agreement, as previously amended, by amending and restating the regional agreement in its entirety. The provisions of this restatement supersede any contrary or inconsistent provisions of the original regional agreement and any contrary or inconsistent provisions of any amendments prior to this restatement. In consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, it is hereby agreed as follows.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

#### Section I. The Regional District School Committee

- (a) The powers and duties of the District shall be vested in and exercised by a District ~~Regional High-School~~ Committee (hereinafter referred to as the “Committee”). The Committee shall consist of nine (9) members: two from the town of Tisbury, two from the town of Oak Bluffs, two from the town of Edgartown, one from the town of West Tisbury, one from the town of Chilmark, and one from the town of ~~Gay Head~~Aquinnah.
- (b) At any time during the month of May, the local school committee of the member towns of Edgartown, Oak Bluffs and Tisbury shall annually appoint from its own membership the number of Committee members specified in Section I (a) above to serve for one year commencing the first day of June following their appointment and until their successors are appointed and qualified. The ~~Board of Selectmen~~Select Boards of the towns of Chilmark, ~~Gay Head~~Aquinnah and West Tisbury shall each appoint as the Committee member from such member town the same the representative who is elected or appointed from their town to fill the “member town” seat of the Up-Island Regional School District of Martha’s Vineyard, as set forth ~~thward~~ in Section III, Representation to the Up-Island Regional School Committee of the Up-Island Regional School Agreement, the town’s member to the Committee. Up-Island Committee members from the towns of Chilmark, Aquinnah and West Tisbury will serve from the time of their appointment by their Select Board until their successors are appointed and qualified.
- (c) In the event that any then serving member of the Committee shall be unable to continue to serve in such office due to death, resignation or lawful removal from office, such event shall be deemed to create a vacancy hereunder. In the event that any newly appointed Committee member shall fail to qualify for office due to death or declination to serve, such failure to qualify shall be deemed to create a vacancy hereunder. If a vacancy occurs on the

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

Committee with respect to a Committee member from the towns of Edgartown, Oak Bluffs, ~~and~~ Tisbury, the respective local school committee ~~involved~~ shall appoint from its own membership a Committee member who shall serve for the balance of the unexpired term and until ~~his~~ such new Committee member's successor is appointed and qualified. If a vacancy occurs on the Committee with respect to a Committee member from the towns of Chilmark, ~~Gay Head, Aquinnah and~~ West Tisbury, the Select Board of the member town in which such vacancy occurs ~~position from the town involved~~ shall appoint a Committee member to serve ~~be filled by appointment of the Board of Selectmen in the manner set forward in Section III, Representation to the Up-Island Regional School Committee of the Up-Island Regional School Agreement. The interim representative so appointed shall serve for the balance of the unexpired term and until~~ such new Committee member's successor is appointed and qualified; the new Committee member so appointed by said Select Board may be, but is not required to be, the same individual who is appointed to fill the corresponding vacancy on the Up-Island Regional School Committee.

#### Section IV. Organization of the Regional School District Committee

- (a) ~~Within ten days after the appointment of the initial members~~ Annually during the month of June, the Committee shall organize by the selection by ballot ~~from~~ its own membership of a chairperson and vice chairperson ~~man~~. At the same meeting or any other meeting, the Committee shall ~~and by the appointment of~~ a secretary and treasurer who may be the same person and need not be members of the Committee.
- (b) The Committee may appoint such other officers and agents as it deems advisable, determine the terms of office of its officers (except the chairperson and the vice-chairperson who shall be elected as provided above), and prescribe the powers and duties of any of its officers. Provision shall be made by the Committee for the times and places of its regular meetings, and for the calling of special meetings including and annual meeting at which officers of the committee shall be selected.

#### Section IVI. Powers and Duties of the Regional District School Committee

- (a) The Committee, for and on behalf of the District, may, by purchase, or the exercise of eminent domain or otherwise, acquire such real estate and other property, and may enter into such contracts or agreements, and may employ such architects, contractors, and engineers, attorneys or other experts, and may be necessary or desirable for the District to carry out its purposes and powers.
- (b) The Committee, for and on behalf of the District, shall establish and maintain within the District a central office for the transaction of its business, the place to be determined by the Committee; and the Committee shall have power to equip said central office and to purchase such supplies as may be required in the transaction of the business of the District.
- (c) The Committee shall have all powers conferred, and all the duties imposed, by this agreement and such other additional powers and duties as are specified in ~~by~~ sections 16 through ~~16+~~ 16I inclusive of Chapter 71 of the General Laws M.G.L., and any amendments thereof or additions thereto now or hereafter enacted, and as may be specified in any other general law or in any applicable special law; and shall have all the powers and duties conferred and imposed upon school committees by law. The Committee shall have authority to act on any

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

~~and~~ other matters, not incompatible with law, which the Committee members thereof deem advisable.

(d) The Committee shall designate a District clerk as required by M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 14E.

(e) Each member of the Committee shall be entitled to one vote. The quorum of the Committee for the transaction of business shall be six Committee members, but a lesser number may adjourn.

#### Section ~~IV~~. Type of School

The ~~regional~~ district school shall be a senior high school consisting of grades 9 through 12, inclusive. The Committee is hereby authorized, in its discretion, to establish and maintain state-aided vocational education, acting as trustees therefore, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 74 of the M.G.L. and acts amendatory thereof, in addition thereto or dependent thereon.

#### Section ~~VIII~~. Location of Regional District School

The ~~Regional~~ District School shall be located in the general area Southwest of the Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road, northeast of the Martha's Vineyard Airport, and adjacent to the Martha's Vineyard State Forest.

#### Section ~~VI~~. Membership

(a) All students residing in any member town and qualified to attend a senior high school may attend the ~~regional~~ district school under the same regulations as would apply if a public senior high school existed in such town.

(b) Students residing outside the ~~Regional School~~ District may enroll in and attend the ~~Regional~~ District School upon the approval of ~~Regional District School~~ the Committee and the payment of on a tuition basis and upon such terms as determined by ~~such the~~ Committee. Income received by the District from tuition students may be deposited into an approved revolving account and expended by the Committee without further appropriation by the member towns.

(c) Any student residing in a member town who is desirous of attending a trade or vocational school outside the District shall have all the privileges of attending such a school as now or may be hereafter provided by law, and the cost of tuition for attending such a school and the cost of transportation, when necessary, shall be included in the District's budget and assessed to the member towns as an Operating Cost.

#### Section VII. Apportionment and Payment of Costs Incurred by the District

(a) In compliance with 603 Code of Massachusetts Regulations ("CMR") 10.03(3), as amended, the District shall adopt and consistently use for all accounting purposes, the Chart of Accounts, as amended, established and maintained by the Massachusetts Department of

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

Elementary and Secondary Education or its successor (“DESE”). District budgets shall be consistently prepared using the line items and associated definitions described in said Chart of Accounts.

~~(a)~~(b) For the purpose of apportioning assessments among ~~levied by the district against~~ the member towns, costs shall be divided into two categories: Capital Costs and Operating Costs.

~~(b)~~(c) Capital Costs shall include all expenditures relating to capital outlay, including without limitation all expenses as outlined in M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 16(d) as it may be amended from time to time, the cost of acquiring land, the cost of constructing, reconstructing, and adding to buildings, and the cost of remodeling or making extraordinary repairs to a school building or buildings, including without limitation the cost of the original equipment and furnishings for such buildings or additions, plans, architects' and consultants' fees, grading and other costs incidental to placing school buildings and additions and related premises in operating condition, the cost of sewer systems and sewerage treatment and disposal facilities or the cost of purchase or use of such systems with a municipality, and the cost of any other capital asset or outlay which the District may acquire or for which the District may be authorized to borrow under any applicable general or special law now or hereafter in effect, such as payment of principal and interest on bonds or other obligations issued by the District to finance Capital Costs, and any other expenses associated with the acquisition of real estate, the construction and improvement of buildings, grading, purchase of equipment, and other activities incident to placing in operation the original school plant and any subsequent additions and improvements thereto.

~~(c)~~(d) Operating Costs shall include all costs not included in Capital Costs, as defined herein, including without limitation ~~other~~ costs such as salaries, wages, supplies, tests, repair and maintenance expenditures, interest on notes issued in anticipation of revenue, and other costs incurred in the day-to-day operation of the school.

~~(d)~~ Operating costs incurred before and after the date of approval of this amendment and Capital Costs of the District incurred only after the date of approval of this amendment shall be apportioned as follows:

(1) Capital costs incurred in connection with the renovation, repair, alteration and/or reconstruction of Martha’s Vineyard Regional High School pursuant to building project undertaken in connection with an invitation in 2022 to apply to Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”) for partial funding of such project (the “2022 MSBA Project”) in connection with such project shall be apportioned to the member towns as follows:

<u>A.</u>	<u>Town of Aquinnah</u>	<u>2.40%</u>
<u>B.</u>	<u>Town of Chilmark</u>	<u>8.26%</u>
<u>C.</u>	<u>Town of Edgartown</u>	<u>30.13%</u>
<u>D.</u>	<u>Town of Oak Bluffs</u>	<u>22.89%</u>
<u>E.</u>	<u>Town of Tisbury</u>	<u>22.90%</u>
<u>F.</u>	<u>Town of West Tisbury</u>	<u>13.42%</u>

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

(2) All other Capital Costs of the District shall be apportioned to the member towns as follows: Such Capital Costs shall be apportioned to the member towns based on the ratio which that member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns, ~~on the basis of their respective enrollments on October 1<sup>st</sup> of the preceding year~~ provided that the ratio for each member town shall be not less than one percent (1%). ~~No member town's portion of the apital osts for any year shall be less than 1% of the total, and, to the extent in the event that any member town's enrollment in the preceding year ratio is less than one percent (1%) and is fixed at one percent (1%) for the purposes of this apportionment calculation, the remaining ninety-nine percent (99%) of such other~~ Capital Costs under this subsection (2) for that year will be apportioned to the other member towns on the basis of the respective ratios that each member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns. The Foundation Enrollment for purposes of calculating apportionment of Operating Costs will be determined using figures reported to DESE by each member town on October 1 for the preceding three years ~~their perspective enrollment in the Regional School District on October 1<sup>st</sup> of that preceding year.~~

(f) Operating Costs shall be apportioned to the member towns based on the Alternative Assessment Method as calculated and outlined in subsection (2) below or based on the Statutory Assessment Method, calculated as set forth in subsections (1) below. The Committee will have the option to vote the Alternative Assessment Method or the Statutory Assessment Method each year:

(1) Statutory Assessment Method:

A. The apportionment of Operating Costs for each member town for each fiscal year will be the sum of the following: (i) the member town's required local contribution to the District as determined by the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary Education ("Commissioner"); (ii) the member town's share of that portion of the District's net school spending, as defined by M.G.L. Chapter 70, Section 2 that exceeds the total of the required local contributions for all member towns; and (iii) the member town's share of costs for transportation and all other expenditures (exclusive of Capital Costs as defined under Section VII (c) above) that are not included in the District's net school spending. A member town's share of (ii) and (iii) herein will be based on the ratio which that member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns, provided that the ratio for each

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

member town shall be not less than one percent (1%) and, to the extent that any member town's ratio is less than one percent (1%) and is fixed at one percent (1%) for the purposes of this apportionment calculation, the remaining ninety-nine percent (99%) of (ii) and (iii) herein will be apportioned to the other member towns on the basis of the respective ratios that each member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns. The Foundation Enrollment for purposes of calculating apportionment of Operating Costs will be determined using figures reported to DESE by each member town on October 1 for the preceding three years.

(2) Alternative Assessment Method:

A. Each member town's share of Operating Costs for each fiscal year shall be determined based on the ratio which that member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns, provided that the ratio for each member town shall be not less than one percent (1%) and, to the extent that any member town's ratio is less than one percent (1%) and is fixed at one percent (1%) for the purposes of this apportionment calculation, the remaining ninety-nine percent (99%) of (ii) and (iii) herein will be apportioned to the other member towns on the basis of the respective ratios that each member town's Foundation Enrollment, calculated on the basis of the member town's combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for the member town, bears to the total Foundation Enrollment for all member towns in the District, calculated on the basis of a combined three-year rolling average of Foundation Enrollment for grades 9 – 12 for all member towns. The Foundation Enrollment for purposes of calculating apportionment of Operating Costs will be determined using figures reported to DESE by each member town on October 1 for the preceding three years.

B. Use of the Alternative Assessment Method must be approved by all member towns in each fiscal year in which it is utilized.

~~(g)~~(g) For purposes of defining enrollment related to assessments, student enrollment shall be defined as the number of students in all grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive, included in the state's definition of Foundation Enrollment.

(h) Each member town shall pay its proportionate share of Operating Costs and Capital Costs to the District each year in four (4) equal instalments within thirty (30) days of July 1, October 1, January 1, and April 1.

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

- ~~(e)~~(i) The District will maintain a so-called "Excess and Deficiency Fund" which shall be administered consistent with directives from the Department of Revenue and consistent with the terms of M.G.L. Chapter 71, Section 16B ½.

#### Section VIII. Annual Report

- (a) The Committee shall submit to each of the member towns on annual report, in sufficient time for inclusion in the annual reports of said member towns. This annual report shall include a detailed financial statement showing the methods by which each member town's share of the annual charges assessed against each member town, including without limitation operating and capital-and maintenance costs, were computed, together with such additional information relating to the operation and maintenance of such school as may be deemed necessary by the Committee or by the selectmen-Select Board of any member town.
- ~~(a)~~(b) The Committee shall conduct an annual independent, financial audit and receive the audit report in public session. Copies of the audit report shall be provided within ten (10) days to the Select Board of each member town, to the school committees of each member town, and to such other officers of the member towns and the District as may be required by law.

#### Section IX. Budget

- (a) At the opening of each academic year, tThe Committee shall as promptly as practicable, proceed to determine the amounts necessary to be raised to maintain and operate the-regional school District for the next fiscal -during the ensuing calendar- year, and the amount required for payment of debt and interest, incurred by the District which will be due in said year, and shall prepare a tentative operating budget containing all proposed operating expenditures, capital expenditures and debt service payments to be paid from general revenues of the District. The budget shall identify each separate revenue source, and the amount estimated for each revenue source; shall specify whether member town assessments are to be calculated pursuant to the statutory assessment method or the alternative assessment method then provided for in the regional agreement, if any; and shall specify the total amounts to be assessed to the member towns for the support of the budget. All non-recurring expenditures shall be itemized. This tentative operating budget shall be itemized in such further detail as the Committee may deem advisable. Such tentative operating budget shall be approved by a majority of the members of the Committee. The Committee shall and-submit copies of such tentative operating budget to the chairperson of Finance or Advisory Board-Committee of each member town at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the final operating and capital budget is adopted by the Committee. If there is no Finance or Advisory Committee in a member town, such copy shall be sent to the Select Board of such member town.
- ~~(b) for its consideration on or before November 1.-~~The Committee shall hold a budget hearing consistent with M.G.L. c. 71, §38N, as amended, annually on its proposed annual budget not less than seven days after publication of a notice thereof in a newspaper having general circulation in the region. Following the public hearing on the proposed annual budget, the Committee may make any such modifications to its proposed annual budget as it may deem necessary or desirable before voting to adopt a final budget.

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

(c) Following such hearing, the Committee shall adopt a final budget by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all of its Committee members, incorporating such changes from the proposed budget that the Committee has deemed appropriate. The budget and assessments shall be so constructed to show debt service, transportation, operating, and capital costs. It shall also list all sources of revenue used to reduce operating costs. Said adoption of a final budget shall occur not later than forty-five (45) days prior to the earliest date on which the business section of the annual town meeting of any member town is to be held, but in no event later than March 31 (provided that said budget need not be adopted earlier than February 1).

(d) Within thirty (30) days from the date on which the budget is adopted by the Committee, and in no event later than April 30, shall adopt an annual maintenance and operating budget on or before December 1 for the ensuing year. Said committee shall apportion the same in accordance with provisions of Section VII of this agreement. The amount so apportioned for each town shall, prior to December 31 of each year, be certified by the District treasurer shall certify to the treasurers of the member towns that member town's assessed share of such budget, and each town shall appropriate the amount so certified

(e) The District's annual budget, as adopted by the Committee, and the member town's assessment as certified by the Treasurer of the District shall be placed before each local appropriating authority for its consideration. The annual budget, as adopted by the Committee shall require the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns by an affirmative vote of the appropriating authorities for such member towns, provided however, that, as stated in Section VII (f)(2)B, above, if the Alternative Assessment Method is used, the annual budget shall require the approval of all member towns by an affirmative vote of the appropriating authorities for such member towns. A vote by the local appropriating authority to appropriate the member town's assessment shall constitute approval of the District's budget. The District budget, so approved, shall be apportioned among the member towns in accordance with the terms in Section VII (e) and (f) above, of this agreement, and assessments pursuant to such approved budget shall be paid by the member towns to the District in accordance with the terms of Section VII (h) above, of this agreement.

#### Section X. Transportation

School transportation shall be provided by the District according to M.G.L. Ch. 71, Section 16C as amended and the cost thereof shall be apportioned to the member towns as an annual Operating Cost pursuant to Section VII (f) of the Regional District School will be handled by the Regional District School Committee.

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

#### Section XI. Admission of Additional Towns to the Regional School District

(a) By an amendment of this agreement adopted under and in accordance with Section XIII, hereinafter, any town or towns may be admitted to the District upon adoption of such amendment and upon acceptance of the agreement as so amended by the town or towns seeking admission and only upon compliance with such provisions of law as may be applicable, including, but not limited to, 603 CMR 41.05(6), as amended, and with such terms as may be set forth in such amendment. Notwithstanding the timeline and effective date outlined in Section XIII (b) and (c), a new member town may only be admitted at the



Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

beginning of a fiscal year, effective on July 1 of that fiscal year, and only if the approval of all member towns and the Commissioner has been obtained on or before the preceding December 31<sup>st</sup>. The authorizing votes of the member towns may provide for the deferral of said admission until July 1 of a subsequent fiscal year.~~Any town may petition to become a member town in the district under terms stipulated in a proposed amendment to the agreement. Said petitioning town shall become a member town if the proposed amendment is approved by the committee and accepted by the petitioning town and each member town, and provided further that the petitioning town shall also accept the agreement with any amendments thereto, approval by the committee to require a majority vote at either special or annual town meetings.~~

- (b) Upon admission of a new member town to the District, assessments levied against the other member towns by the District to meet capital costs as defined in Section VII (~~c~~b) shall be reapportioned, the terms of reapportionment to be stipulated in the amendment to the agreement by which the newly admitted member town is admitted to the District.
- (c) The newly admitted member town shall pay to the District its share, as determined in Section XI (b) and XI (c) of this agreement the funded indebtedness of the District already retired. For the purpose of this calculation such funded retired indebtedness shall be deemed to be considered as the difference between (1) the original capital costs incurred by the District plus any subsequent capital costs, exclusive of interest and the total state construction grant, depreciated at the rate of 2 percent per year, and (2) that part of capital costs as yet unpaid less that part of the state construction grant not yet received. Such share of the newly admitted member town shall be paid over the remaining scheduled period for repayment of such indebtedness, in four equal installments, to be paid not later than the twentieth of March, June, September, and December in each year during this remaining period of indebtedness. Payments thus made toward retired indebtedness shall be credited to the other member towns comprising the District in amounts proportionate to the share of those same capital costs that each of those other member towns has paid in the past.

## Section XII. Withdrawal of a Town from the Regional School District.

- (a) The withdrawal of a member town from the District may be effected only by an amendment to this agreement in the manner hereinafter provided in this Section XII. Any member town seeking ~~may petition~~ to withdraw shall, by vote at an annual or special town meeting, request the Committee to draw up an amendment to this agreement setting forth the terms by which such town may withdraw from the District. No withdrawal will take effect on other than July 1 of a given year, and the vote referred to in the preceding sentence, the notification to the District consistent with subsection (b) below, and the submittal of a long range education plan consistent with subsection (c) below, must all occur no less than one (1) year prior to the desired date of withdrawal.
- (b) The clerk of the member town seeking to withdraw, within seven (7) days of the vote of the annual or special town meeting requesting the Committee to draw up an amendment to this agreement for the purpose of withdrawal of such member town, shall notify the Committee chairperson and the District's superintendent of schools in writing of such vote and shall provide a certified copy of the vote with such notification. Thereupon, the Committee shall

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

draw up an amendment to this agreement consistent with the terms and provisions of this Section XII and setting forth such other terms of withdrawal as the Committee deems advisable, subject to the limitations contained in Section XIII. The Secretary of the Committee shall mail or deliver a notice in writing to the Select Board of each member town that the Committee has drawn up an amendment to this agreement providing for the withdrawal of a member town and enclosing with such notice a copy of such proposed amendment. The Select Board of each member town shall include an article stating the amendment in the warrant for the next annual or special town meeting of the Town.

(c) No less than two (2) full years prior to the desired date of withdrawal, the member town seeking to withdraw, in addition to the other requirements referred to in subsections (a) and (b) above, will submit to the Commissioner and to the District a "Long Range Education Plan" consistent with 603 CMR 41.02 (2). The Long Range Education Plan will address, in addition to any other factor required by the Commissioner, the following: the expected educational benefits of reorganization; the current and projected enrollments; an inventory of all educational facilities under the jurisdiction of the member town and under the jurisdiction of the District and construction efficiencies, if any; the proposed administrative structure; the fiscal ramifications of the withdrawal upon the withdrawing town as well as the other member towns in the District; the geographical and physical characteristics of the area; and the effect that withdrawal will have on student transportation.

(d) In addition to other terms and requirements which the Committee may include in the proposed amendment, the member town seeking to withdraw from the District under terms stipulated in a proposed amendment to the agreement provided (1) that the town seeking to withdraw shall have paid over to the District any operating costs for which it became liable as a member of the District, and (2) that said town shall remain liable to and shall continue to make payments to the District for its share of the indebtedness of the District outstanding at the time of such withdrawal, and for interest thereon, to the same extent and in the same manner as though the town had not withdrawn from the District, (3) shall remain liable to and shall continue to make payments to the District for its share of such other liabilities incurred by the District during all times that the withdrawing member town was a member of the District (e.g., Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPEB")) as determined by the Committee; and (4) shall have paid to the District the costs, including legal fees, that accrue to the District as a result of the withdrawal, provided that the withdrawing member town's responsibility for such continuing obligations as set forth in clauses (2) and (3) of this subsection (d) except that such liability shall be reduced by any amount which such withdrawing member town has paid over at the time of withdrawal and which has been applied to the payment of such indebtedness, such other liabilities incurred during the period that the withdrawing member town was a member of the District, including without limitation, OPEB, or interest. The Committee's proposed amendment may condition withdrawal upon the irrevocable deposit by the withdrawing member town, in trust in the name of the District, of funds in an amount sufficient to meet such responsibilities pursuant to Section XII (f), below.

(e) Said petitioning town shall cease to be a member town only if the Committee's proposed amendment to this agreement is approved by the Committee, and accepted by the petitioning town and each of the other member towns, and by the Commissioner; approval by the Committee to require a majority vote, and approval acceptance by the petitioning town

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

and by the other member towns to be by majority vote at an annual or special town meeting. Such withdrawal shall become effective no earlier than one full year after the last to occur of the following events: completion of the approval of the proposed amendment to this agreement by the Committee, the member towns (including the withdrawing member town), and the Commissioner, and shall become effective only at the beginning of a fiscal year of the District. The authorizing votes of the member towns may provide for the deferral of said withdrawal until July 1 of a subsequent fiscal year.

(f) Money received by the District from the withdrawing member town for payment of funded indebtedness, OPEB, such other liabilities incurred by the District during all times that the withdrawing member town was a member of the District or interest thereon shall be issued used only for such this purpose and until so used shall be deposited in trust in the name of the District with a Massachusetts bank or trust company having a combined capital and surplus of not less than \$1,500,000 only.

(g) Upon the effective date of withdrawal, the terms of office of all Committee members from the withdrawing member town shall terminate and the total membership of the Committee and the calculation of a quorum from Committee business shall be decreased accordingly as set forth in the amendment to this regional agreement made at such time.

#### Section XIII. Amendments

- (a) ————This agreement may be amended at any time, and from time to time, in the manner hereinafter provided, but no such amendment shall be made which shall substantially impair the rights of the holders of any bonds or notes the District then outstanding, or the rights of the District to procure the means for payment thereof, provided that nothing in this section shall prevent the admission of a new town or towns to the District and the reapportionment accordingly of capital costs of the District represented by bonds or notes of the District then outstanding and of interest thereon.
- (b) Any proposal for amendment, except a proposal for amendment providing for the withdrawal of a member town (which shall be acted upon as provided in Section XII) may be proposed by a majority vote of all of the members of the Committee or (ii) by the vote of any town meeting of any member town or (iii) by a petition signed by 10% of the registered voters of any one of the member towns which is then approved by a majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Committee. In the case of amendments proposed pursuant to Section XIII (b)(ii), the town clerk of the member town proposing such an amendment shall forthwith deliver a copy of such vote to the secretary of the Committee. In the case of amendments proposed pursuant to Section XIII (b)(iii), said petition shall contain at the end thereof a certification by the town clerk of such member town as to the number of registered voters in said town according to the most recent voting list and the number of signatures on the petition which appear to be the names of registered voters of said town and said petition shall be presented to the chair of the Committee and submitted by the Chair of the Committee to the Committee for approval by a majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Committee as stated above. In each case the secretary of the Committee shall forthwith deliver a notice in writing to the Select Board of each of the member towns that a proposal to amend this agreement has been made and shall enclose a copy of the vote proposing the amendment and

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II

Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink

Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink

Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

a copy of the proposed amendment, provided however that in the case of an amendment proposed pursuant to Section XIII (b)(iii), the secretary of the Committee shall not deliver such notice or copies to the Select Boards of each of the member towns until such time as the proposed amendment has been approved by a majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Committee; the latter case the town clerk shall forthwith deliver a copy of such vote to the secretary of the committee. In either case the secretary shall forthwith deliver a copy of the vote proposing the amendment.

(c) The Select Board of each member town shall include in the warrant for the next annual meeting or at a special town meeting called for the purpose an article stating the proposed amendment. Except in the case of amendments resulting from the addition of a new member, which shall become effective as set forth in Section XI, to the town clerk of each member town, and each such town shall acceptance of such amendment. Such amendment shall take effect upon its acceptance by ~~all~~ each of the member towns, acceptance by each member town to be by a majority vote at a town meeting as aforesaid, and only after approval of the Commissioner. Should the amendment impact the budget, said amendment will only take effect on the first July 1 which falls after acceptance by all of the member towns and receipt of approval of the Commissioner, and only when there has been sufficient advanced time to prepare the budget and assessments in accordance with the new procedure set forth in such amendment. All amendments must be approved by the Commissioner in the manner hereinabove provided.

(d) Recognizing that circumstances often change over time, and intending that this agreement should continue to serve the best interests of the member towns, the Committee should, at five year intervals, review the need to establish an ad hoc study group composed of knowledgeable persons to study the agreement and report to the Committee as to whether or not any changes to this agreement might be beneficial in light of then prevailing conditions. The Committee shall give any such ad hoc study group's report due consideration, but may exercise its own discretion as to whether or not it will implement any of the group's recommendations.

#### Section XIV. Incurring of Debt.

The District may borrow under M.G.L. c. 71, §16(d) and any other applicable general or special law now or hereafter in effect. Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 71, §16(d), not later than seven days after the date on which the Committee authorizes the incurring of debt, other than temporary debt in anticipation of revenue to be received from any source, written notice of the date of said authorization, the sum authorized, and the general purpose or purposes for authorizing such debt, shall be given to the Select Board for each member town. No debt may be incurred until authorized in accordance with M.G.L. c. 71, §16(d) or pursuant to the provisions of any other applicable general or special law now or hereafter in effect. Notwithstanding the provision of this Section XIV, the Committee may, by a vote of two-thirds of all of its members, require that the approval of any particular authorized issue of indebtedness shall be by the registered voters of the member towns pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 71, §16(n) rather than pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 71, §16(d).

School Committee Signatures:

Changes made in Amendment I in 1956 were superseded entirely by Amendment II  
Changes made via Amendment II in June 1989 are shown in green ink  
Changes made via Amendment III (undated) are shown in purple ink  
Changes made via Amendment IV in 1994 are shown in blue ink

_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____
_____	Date: _____

Signature of Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary Education:

_____	Date: _____
-------	-------------